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Superintendent Gayle Hull, School Secretary
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August 11, 2018

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Sandyston-Walpack School District
P.O.Box 128

Layton, N.J. 07851

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) of the Sandyston-Walpack School District for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data
and the completeness and faimess of presentation, including all disclosures, rest with the management of
the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is
accurate in all material aspects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly, in all material
aspects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows where applicable in the United States of
America. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s
financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic financial
statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report thereon. The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District
is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, “Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” and the
State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State
Grants and State Aid Payments”. Information related to this single andit, including the auditor’s report
on internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.



1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The district provides an education to pre-school through sixth grade resident children of Sandyston and
Walpack townships. The teachers follow a board approved curriculum for all subject areas, including
core curriculum in English language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies, as well as special
classes in physical education, music, art, Spanish, technology, enrichment, and library/media science.
The curriculum for each content area is formulated by a working group of teachers from each of the four
elementary districts within the Kittatinny Regional High School District. Representatives from the high
school also participate in these curriculum initiatives. The consortium group is working to revise all
curricula to include accommodations and modifications for all at-risk subgroups, per state mandate. The
district and all other constituents of the Kittatinny region continue to move toward the implementation
of the NJ Student Learning Standards and Next Generation Science Standards.

Each homeroom benefits from having two teachers providing instruction in ELA and Math on a daily
basis in in-class support settings. Two special education teachers also provide instruction to students
with special needs in the pull-out resource centers. A Basic Skills program was added for students at
risk for academic failure in grades K-6. Two classroom aides also support students, as needed. Qur
Child Study team and Therapists provide necessary services to students with IEPs, and coordinate the
Intervention and Referral Services program as well.

School enrollment has been trending downward since the 1999-2000 school year.
Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Year Student Enrollment Percent Change
2017-2018 141 (4.7)
2016-2017 148 1.3
2015-2016 146 2.09
2014-2015 143 (7.1)
2013-2014 154 1.98
2012-2013 151 2.7
2011-2012 147 (5.7
2010-2011 156 (0.03)
2009-2010 161 0.012
2008-2009 159 (10.1)
2007-2008 177 (2.7)
2006-2007 182 3.4
2005-2006 176 0
2004-2005 176 (1.6)
2003-2004 179 1.1
2002-2003 177 (11.0)
2001-2002 199 4.7
2000-2001 190 (5.9)
1999-2000 202 0
1698-1999 202 8.2
1997-1998 187 {3.7)
1996-1997 194 54
1995-1996 184 11.5
1994-1995 165 (4.0)
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1993-1994 172 0

1992-1993 172 2.3

2_ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Sandyston-Walpack School District currently

and historically has enjoyed a strong level of support from its two constituent communities. The Board
of Education maintains a budget which supports the needs of students and is fiscally responsible for the
community. The Board also receives Federal Impact Aid, Section 7002 funds which help offset the loss
of ratable property due to its acquisition by the federal government for the Delaware Water Gap National
Recreation Area. Historically, the Board of Education has used these funds to help offset tax increases,
support one-time costs such as building improvements, technology upgrades, and special programs.
Any loss of funding at either the federal or state level will impact the quality of our programs.
Repgardless of the economic climate, the board has been able to move forward in a number of areas:
facility/maintenance, technology, and meeting the constant state mandates for teacher evaluation, New
Jersey Student Learning Standards (SLS), and online assessments. For example, new security measures
were installed and end-of-life chromebooks were replaced to continue to provide a safe and
technology-rich learning environment. Additional upgrades to the facility and instructional supplies will
be possible with the continued federal funding of Impact Aid and state aid.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: The Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School maintains its focus on
providing a quality education for all children aged 3 through 12. The Board of Education stands
committed to reviewing our current programs and adding the elements needed to comply with the NJ
SLS. The workshop model initiative that was implemented last year resulted in significantly improved
test scores. We will continue to provide training for teachers in the workshop model, upgrade classroom
instructional resources, and create student-centered learning environments in the classrooms with
flexible furniture. Our professional development during 2018-2019 will continue to be focused on the
following areas: NJSLS in ELA and Math, the PARCC Assessment, technology, and school climate.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the district is responsible for

establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the district
are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The intemal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the
cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires costs and estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the district also is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to these programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the
district management.

As part of the district’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the district has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to insure compliance with legal
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provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and for capital
outlay. The final budget, as amended for the fiscal year, is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line jtem
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of
fund balance on June 30, 2018.

6. ACCQUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The district’s accounting records reflect generally
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The accounting system of the district is organized on the basis of funds and account groups.
These funds and account groups are explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.

1. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the Sandyston-Walpack School District is guided
in large part by state statute as detailed in “Notes to Financial Statements, Note 2. The district has
adopted a cash management plan which requires it to deposit funds in public depositories protected from
loss under the provision of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was
enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public
depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the act,

8. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to
general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on
property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

9, OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit — State statute requires an annual audit by independent
certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of T.M. Vrabel &

Associates was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes,
the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and
Title 2 U.8. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” and State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08
OMB. The auditor’s report on the general purpose financial section statements and combining and
individual statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor’s
reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report,

10. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the
Sandyston-Walpack Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and

taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and
maintenance of our financial operation.

Respectfully submitted,
@w&% Kyﬁmﬂu
anne Apryasz, Ed.D. Carole Kylish
Superintendent Board Secretary
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Accountants and Auditors

Timothy M. Vrabel, RMA, 54
Cliris C. Hiang, (oA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District
County of Sussex, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

. We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sandyston-Walpack
Consolidated Schoo! District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements which collectively comprise the District’s basic financia) statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for

350 Main Rpad; Suits 104

Montville, N7 07045
973-953-7769, Fax; 973-625-8733

Email tmvmﬁeﬂ'vc@aptouﬁu. net
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the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intenal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions,

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on Page 14 through 20 and budgetary comparison information of schedules C-] and C-
2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited pracedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
introductory section, and other supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund financial
statements, long-term debt schedules, statistical tables and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Re uirements for Federal Awards: and New
lersey OMB'’s Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Reci ients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the Schedules of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal
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Awerds and State Financial Assistance is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures and applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Govermment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 10, 2018 on
our consideration of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s internal control over financial
reporting and on out tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Goyernment Auditing Standards in considering Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School
District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Timothy é Vrabel

Public School Accountant
License No. CS000698

i

2y

Chris C. W. Hwang
Certified Public Accountant
License No, CC033704

Montville, New Jersey
August 10, 2018

12
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District financial activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page 1 and the District’s financial statements, which begin on
page 23.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» The District's net position increased $38,000 as a result of this year's operations. Net position of our business-type activities
decreased by $8,000, or 80.0 percent, and net position of our governmental activities increased by $46,000 or 2.6 percent.

* Total cost of all of the District's programs was $4,096,000 in 2017-2018 compared to $3,576,000 in 2016-2017.

* During the year, the District had expenses for governmental activities that were $211,000 more than the $3,471,000 generated in
tax and other program revenues.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (on pages
23and 24) provide information about the activities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view on the District’s finances.
Fund financial statements start on page 27. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the
short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the District's operation in more detail
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the District’s most financially significant funds

Reporting the District as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

Our analysis of the District as a whole begins on page 16. One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is
“Is the District as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most
private-sector companies. Accrual of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in them. You can think of the District’s net position, the difference
between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the District’s net position are one indicator whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to

consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the District's property tax base, and the condition of the District's
capital assets to assess the overall health of the District.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the District into two kinds of activities:

*» Governmental activities: most of the District’s basic services are reported here, including general administration. Local taxes,
tuition and state and federal aid finance most of these activities.

* Business-type-activities: the District has one proprietary fund as shown on pages 31,32and 33.

14



Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Our analysis of the District's major funds begins on page 18. The fund financial statements begin on page 27 and provide detailed
information about the most significant funds-not the District as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law. The
District’s two kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting approaches,

Governmental funds: most of the District's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps one determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation on
page 29,

Proprietary funds: when the District charges customers for the full cost of the services it provides, these services are reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities. In fact, the District’s enterprise funds (a component of business type funds) are the same as the business-
type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows,
for proprietary funds.

The District as Trustee

Reporting the District’s Fiduciary Responsibilities

The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Unemployment Compensation Trust, and Agency Funds. All of the District’s fiduciary
activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on pages 35 and 36.

We exclude these activities from the District’s other financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its
operations, The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.
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THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The District’s combined net position changed from a year ago, increasing from $1,770,000 to $1,808,000. Looking at the net position
and net expenses of governmental and business-type activities separately, different stories emerge. Our analysis below focuses on the
net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the District's governmental and business-type activities as of June 30.

Table 1
Net Position (in Thousands)
Govemnmental Business-type Total
Activities Activiteg Primary Govemment
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Current and other assets 1,605 1,841 11 11 1,616 1,852
Long term receivables - -
Capital assets 1,251 1,il9 - - 1,251 1,119

Total assets 2,856 2,960 11 11 2,867 2,971
Deferred outflows of resources 428 303 428 303
Long-term debt outstanding 95 144 95 144
Aggregate net pension Lability 1,010 1,030 1,010 1,030
Cther liabilities 91 58 9 1 100 59

Total liabilities 1,196 1,232 9 1 1,205 1,233
Deferred inflows of resources 282 272 282 272
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 1,250 1,119 1,250 1,119

Restricted 898 1,099 898 1,099

Unrestricted (deficit) {342) (458) 2 10 (340) (448)
Total net position 1,806 1,760 2 10 1,808 1,770

Net position of the District’s governmental activities increased by 2.5 percent. Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that
can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal
requirements increased by $116,000. Restricted net position, those restricted mainly for capital projects decreased by $201,000. Both
net position categories benefited from increased economic activity, which resulted in actual revenues exceeding budgeted revenues,
The net investment in capital assets increased by $131,000.
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Table 2
Changes in Net Position (in thousands)

Govemmental Business-type Total
Activities Activites Primary Govemment
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenyes
Program revenues:

Charges for Services 4 6 4 6

Operating Grants and Contributions 1,193 351 1 3 1,194 354
General revenues:

Property Taxes 2,089 2,048 2,089 2,048

Tuition 17 - 17

Federal and State Aid 828 848 828 848

Interest and Investment Earnings 13 5 13 5

Other General Revenues 5 5 - 8 5 3
Total Revenues: 4,128 3264 5 17 4,133 3,281
P mexpenses including indirect nse
Instruction:

Regular 1,822 1,621 1,822 1,621

Special 561 386 561 386

Other instruction 203 162 203 162
Support services:

Tuition 130 7 130 71

Student and instruction related services 409 496 409 496

School administrative services 98 80 o8 80

General and business administrative services 347 29] 347 29]

Plant operations and maintenance 284 254 284 254

Pupil transportation 185 170 185 170
Charter school 40 26 40 26
SDA Debt Service Assessment 3 3 3 3
Business-type activities:

Food Services - - 14 16 14 16
Total Expenses 4,082 3,560 14 16 4,096 3,576
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 46 (296) &) 1 37 295
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THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS
Governmental Activities
Table 3

Information below compares revenues and expenditures for all governmental fund types for 2017-2018 and 2016-2017.

(8000 omitted)
Revenues by Source: 2017-2018 2016-2017 % Change
Local Tax Levy 2,089 2,048 2.00%
Tuition Charges 17 -100.00%
Interest Eamed to Investments 14 5 180.00%
Miscellaneous 5 3 66.67%
Total - Local Sources 2,108 2,073 1.69%
State Sources 934 750 24.53%
Federl Sources 429 449 -4.45%
Total Revenues _. 3,272 6.08%
(8000 omitted)
Expenditures by Function; 2017-2018 2016-2017 % Change
Current: ;
Regular Instruction 1,013 1,020 -0.69%
Special education 283 245 15.51%
Other instruction 130 124 4.84%
Support Services and undistributed costs:
Tuition 131 71 84.51%
Student and instruction related services 328 415 -20.96%
School administrative services 61 60 1.67%
General and Business administrative services 208 200 4.00%
Plant operations and maintenance 227 225 0.89%
Pupil transportation 162 152 6.58%
Empicyee Benefits 903 742 21.70%
Capital Outlay 196 149 31.54%
Charter School 40 26 53.85%
Total Expenditures 3,682 3,429 7.38%
— | =
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Business-type Activities

The District’s major Enterprise Fund consists of the Food Service. The basic

financial statements for this major fund are included in

this report. Because the focus on business-type funds is a cost of service measurement or capital maintenance, we have included this
fund in Table 4, which demonstrates return on ending assets and return on ending net position.

Table 4

{8000 omitted)

Total Assets
Net Position
Change in Net Position

Return on Ending Total Assets

Retumn on Ending Net Position

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
Table §

Capital Assets at Year-end
{Net of Depreciation, in thousands)

Govemmental
Activities

a8 2017
Land 50 50
Buildings 1,919 1,726
Machinery and Equipment 359 359
Subtotal 2,328 2,135
Accumulated Depreciation (1,078) _ (1,016
Totals 1,250 1,119

Food
Service

i1
2

®)
-12.73%

-400.00%

Business-type

Activiteg Tota
2017 2018 2017
50 50
1,919 1,726
359 359
- 2,328 2,135
- (1,078)  (1,016)
- 1,250 1,119

The District’s 2018-2019 capital budget anticipates a spending level of $215,978.00 for capital projects. More detailed information
about the District capital assets is presented in Note ITI:C. to the basic financial statements
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DEBT
At year-end the District had total debt of $0 versus $0 last year as shown in Table 6.

Outstanding Debt, at year —end (in thousands)

Table 6

Governmental
Activities

2018 2017

Serial Bonds

Loans

Lease Purchase Agreement

Temporary Notes

Authorized but not Issued - -

An analysis of District Debt is presented in Note IV:B. to the basic financial statements.

BUDGETS

The significant variances between the originally adopted budget for the year 2017-2018 and the final budget were caused by the
appropriation of additional Impact Aid Reserve and the treatment of encumbrances that are added to the original budget.. In addition,
the State pension payments, which are paid by the State on behalf of employees are not budgeted, however they are counted as an
expense in the audit.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of
the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. [f you have questions about this report or

need additional financial information, contact the School Business Administrator/Board Secretary, Sandyston-Walpack School
District, Layton, New Jersey
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

Exhibit A-1

Governmentail Buslness-type
Actlvities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 628,584.89 $ 6,131.73 $ 634,716.62
Receivables, net 98,221.50 219.35 98,440.85
Interfund recaivables 4,419.22 4,419.22
Restricted assets;
Capital reserve account - cash 335,314.70 335,314.70
Malntenance raserve - cash 164,663.58 164,663.58
Impact Ald reserve - cash 378,779.17 378,779.17
Capital assets, net (Note MII:C.): 1,250,611.28 - 1,250,611.28
Total Assets _2,856/175.12 10,770.30 2 066,945.42
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 428,638.93 428,538.93
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 428,538.93 428,538.93
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 76,837.32 8,624.90 8546222
Interfunds payable 4,419.22 441922
Uneamed revenue 7.247.11 7.247.11
Other 2,494.65 2,494.85
Long-term liablfities other than penslons{Note IV:B.):
Due within one year 1,805.00 1,805.00
Due beyond one year 93,210.23 93,210.23
Aggregate net pansion liability 1,009,868.00 - 1,009 869.00
Total iabilities 1,195,082.53 8,624.90 1,204,607.43
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows related to pensions 282,521.00 282,521.00
Total Defarred Inflows of Resources 282 521.00 282,521.00
NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets 1,250,611.28 1,250,611.28
Restricted for;
Capital projects 335314.70 335,314.70
Other purposes 562,527.84 §62,527.84
Unrestricied (342,243.30) 2,145.40 (340,097.90)
Total Net Position $ _ 1.806,210.52 $ 214540 $__1,808,355.92

The accompanying Notes to Financlal Statemeants are an Integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

Exhibit B-1

Spoeclal Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Eunds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 705,083.7¢ $ (76,488.90) $ 628,584.89
Receivables from other govermments 13,781.00 76,498.90 90,270.90
Other 7,941.80 7.941.60
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 878,767.45 - 878,757 .45
Total Assels $ 160556384 § - $__ 1,605,583.84
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Llabilitles:
Accounts payable $ 7683732 % - 5 78,837.32
Interfunds payable 4,419.22 4,419.22
Unearned revenue 7,247.11 7.247.11
Other 2,484,685 2494.65

Tatal Liabilities £0,998.30

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Capital Resarve Account 335,314.70
Malntenance Reserve 164,663.58
Impact Ald Reserve 378,779.17
Asslgned to:
Other Purposes 19,085.08
Deslgnatad for Subsequent Year's
Expandituras 365,064.00
Unassigned 251,658.00
Total Fund Balances 1,514,565.54 -
Total Liabfiitles and Fund Balances 3 180558384 § -

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of
net position (A-1) are different becausa:

Adjustment to Debt Service Fund net position for the
accrual of interest axpense.

Capital asssts usad In gavernmental activities are not finaniclal
resources and therefora are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $2,328,392.06 and the accumulated depraciation
is $1,077,780.78.

Penslon liabilities net of defarred outflows and Inflows of rescurces
Long-term Habilitles, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable In the current perod and therefore ars not reporied as
liabilities In the funds (see Nete IV:B.)

Nat position of governmeantal acllvities

The accompanying Notes to Financlal Statements are an Intagral part of this statament.
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335,314.70
184,683.50
378,779.17

19,085.08
3685,084.00

251,6859.00
1,514,565.54

1,250,811.28

(863,851.07)

(95,115.23)

5 1,806,210.52



BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, And Changes in Fund Balances

Governmeantal Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES

Local sources:
Local tax fevy
Intarest eamed on Investments
Interest samed on Capltal Ressrve Funds
Interest eamed on Maintsnance Reserve Funds
Interest samed on Impact Ald Resarve Funds
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sourcas

State sources

Federal sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular instruction
Special aducation Instruction
Other Instruction
Support services and undistribuled costs:
Tuition
Student and instruction related services
School adminlstrative services
QGeneral and business administrative services
Plant operations and malintenance
Pupll transportation
Unallocated benefits
Transfer to chartar school
Capital outtay
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficlancy} of revenues
over expenditures

Net changa In fund balances
Fund Balance—July 1

Fund Balance—Juns 30

Exhlbit B-2

Speclal Total
General Revenue Governmantal
Fund Eund Eunds

$§ 2,088658.00 % - $ 2,088,658.00
4,500,789 4,508.79
3,607.83 3,607.83
1,803.92 1,803.92
3,807.83 3,607.83
5,355.78 5,365.78
2,107,541.15 2,107,541.15
834,402,23 934,402.23
352,957.00 76,498.80 420,455.80
3,394,800.38 76,498.90 3,471,399.28
978,483.52 35,010.00 1,013,483,52
279,942.40 3,281.95 2B63,224.35
130,430.82 130,430.82
130,853.12 130,853.12
289,856.88 38,208.95 328,083.91
80,565.70 60,565.70
207,902.19 207,502,1%
228,868.31 228,860.31
161,553.82 161,553.62
9803,550.69 903,556.69
30,654.00 38,654.00
195,873.73 - 195,873.73
3,605,441.98 78,498.80 3,681,940.86

{210,541.58)

(210,541.58)

(210,541.58) . (210,541.58)
1,725,107.12 - 1,725,107.12
$ 151456554 § - § 151456554

The accompanying Notes to Financlal Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhlbit B8-3
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconclliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changos in Fund Balances of Govemmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
June 30, 2018

Total net change In fund balances « governmental funds (from B-2} -1 (210,541.58)

Amounts reportad for govemmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are diffarent because:

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt In the siatement of activities |s necrued,
ragardiess of when due. In the governmental funds, Interest Ia reporiad when dus. The difference
In accrued interest Is an addition In the reconcilation, +)

Interest paid 3 -
Interest accrued _—

Capital outiays era raporied In govemmental funds as expenditures. However, In the statsmant of
acllvities, the cost of those assots Is allocatad over their astmated usaful lives as depreclation axpense,
This Is the amount by which capital outiays exceedad depreciation in the period,
Depreclation expensa (62,189.85)
Capltal outlays {(exclusive of capital
lease princlpal payments and
SDA Debt Service Assaasment) 193,270.73
131,104.08

Adjustment to Capital Asaets in accordance with physical appraisal and dispositiona -

In the statsment of activities, only the galn on the disposal of capital assets |s reporied, whereas
In tha govemmental funds, the procaeds from a sale Increase financlal resources, Thus, tha change In
net assets will differ from the change In fund balance by the cost of the asset ramoved., (=) -

In the statemant of activities, certain operating expanses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations and
unused sick pay) are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds,
howsver, expenditures for theae ltems are reportad in the amount of financial rescurcas used (pald).
When the earned amount exceeds ths paid amount, the diferance Is reduction In the recanciliation (-);
when the pald amount exceads the eamed amount the differencs is an additien In the reconcillation {+). (9,220.22)

Gavemmental fiunda report district pension contributions as expenditures. In the statement of activites,
however, the cost of pension benefits camed net of employes contributions is reported as pension expense.
District pension contributicns - PERS 41,186.83
Cost of benefits eamed net of
employees contributiona 94,044.00
135,230.93

Payment of long-term liabllity principal Is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilties In the statement of net asaats and Is not reportad in the statement of activities,
Debt principal -
Capital lsass principal -

Proceads from dabt issues ars a financing source In the governmental funds, They are not revenua in
the statement of activities; Issuing debt increases long-term llabllities In the statement of net assets.
Proceads of long-term debt -
Capltal lease proceeds -

Revenues in tha statement of activities which do not provide current financial rasources are not
raportad as ravenues In the funds, (+)

Change In net positlon of governmental activities $ 48,570.21

The accompanying Notes to Financlal Statements are an Intsgral part of this statement.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

Exhibit B-4

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS

Current Assets;

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable
Interfund receivables

Total Current Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities;
Accounts payable

Total Current Liabliities

NET POSITION

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2018

Business-typa Activities -
_Enterprise Funds

Food
Servicg Jotals

$ 813173 § 6,131.73
219.35 218.35
4,419.22 4418.22

10,770.30 10,770.30
10,770.30 10,770.30

8,624.90 8,624.90
8,624.90 8,624.90

2,145.40 2,145.40
$_214540 § 214540

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Cost of sales - reimbursable programs
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable programs
Salaries
General supplies

Tatal Operating Expanses
Operating Income {Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses);
State sources:
State schoal lunch program
Federal sources:
National school [unch program
interest and investment revenue
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income {loss) before contributions and fransfers
Transfers in (out)

Change in net position
Total Net Position—Beginning

Total Net Position—Ending

Exhibit B-&

Business-type Actlvities -

Enterprise Funds
Food
Sarvice Totals
$ 778.05 § 778.05
3,119.10 3,119.10
3,897.15 3,897.15
2,865.84 2,865.84
2,752.64 2,752.64
7,941.60 7.941.60
13,560.08 13,560.08
{9,662.93) (9,662.93)
20.77 20.77
1,076.30 1,076.30
14,32 14.32
$,120.39 1,120.39
(8,542.54) (8,542.54)
(8,542.54) (8,542.54)
10,687.94 10,687.94
§ 214540 $ 2 145.40

The accompanying Notes to Financlal Statements are an Integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-§
BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Business-type Actlvities -

Enterprise Funds
Food
Service Jotals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 279108 § 2,791.08
Payments to employees {7,941.60) (7,941.60)

Payments to suppliers 2,544.72 2,544.72
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities {2,605.80) _(2,605.80)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

State Sources 29.77 29.77

Federal Sources 1,076.30 1,076.30

Operating subsidies and transfers to other funds - -
Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing activities 1,108.07 1,106.07

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest and dividends 14.32 14.32
Net cash provided by {(used for) investing activities 14.32 14.32
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {1,485.41) (1,485.41)

Balances—heginning of year 7,617.14 7,617.14

Balances—end of year 3 6,131.73 §$ 6,131.73

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
{used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (9662.93) (9,662.93)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (joss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net (1,106.07) (1,106.07)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 8,163.20 8,163.20

Total adjustments 7,057.13 7,057.13
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 3 __(2605.80) § {2,605.80)

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-7
BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduclary Funds
June 30, 2018

Unemployment
Compensation Agency

Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,802.93 §$ 74,153.53
Interfund receivable 15,684.07 -
Total Assets $  41.487.00 3% 74,153.53
Accounts payable
Interfund payable $ 15,684.07
Payable to student groups 656.85
Payroll deductions and withholdings 57,812.61
Total Liabilities $ 74153.53
NET POSITION
Held in trust for unemployment
claims and other purposes $__ 41,487.00

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Plan member
Board of Education

Total Contributions

Investment earnings:
Interest

Net investment earnings
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment claims

Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position—beginning

Net Position—ending

BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduclary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Exhibit B-8

Unemployment
Compensation

JTrust

§ 510428

5,104.28

51.54
51.54

5,155.82

2,141.34

2,141.34
3,014.48

38,472.52

$__41487.00

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DBUAKD U BUUCALIUN

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District
(District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In its accounting and finencial reporting,
the District follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the District are discussed below.

B. Reporting Entity

The Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to
function as an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control
of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the
District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District’s reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the
GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Stan is the degree of oversight
responsibility maintained by the District. Oversight responsibility includes financial interdependency, selection of
goveming authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for
fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the Board exercises
operating control. The operations of the District include one elementary school located in Layton. There were no
additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current
fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

C. Bagic Financial Statements- Government-Wide Statements

The District’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a whole) and fund
financial statements (reporting the District’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements
categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The District’s general and special revenue
activities are classified as governmental activities. The District’s food service program is classified as a business-type
activity.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are
presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The District’s net position
are reported in three parts-invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net
position. The District first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities,
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
C. Bagic Financial Statements- Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the District's functions
and business-type activities. The finctions are also supported by general government revenues (property taxes,
tuition, certain intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly
associated with the fanction (regular instruction, vocational programs, student and instruction related services, etc.) or
a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital)
grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants,

The net costs (by function or business-type activity are normally covered by general revenue (property taxes, tuition,
interest income, etc.).

a. The District allocates indirect costs such as on-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, on-behalf TPAF and
PERS OPEB Contributions and Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the change in the District's
net position resulting from the current year’s activities, Fiduciary funds are excluded from the govemnment-wide
financial statements.

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund
is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves,
fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within the
financial statements.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in ejther the governmental or business-type activities
category are summarized into a single column. GASBS No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets,
liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined)
for the determination of major funds, The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements,
The State of New Jersey Department of Education has mandated that all New J ersey School districts must report all
governmental funds as major, regardless of the fund meeting the GASB definition of a major fund. However, the
GASB criteria are applied to proprietary funds,
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The following fund types are used by the District:

Governmental Fund Types

The focus of the govemmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of finencial
position and chenges in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net
income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the District:

General Fund — The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund, Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified in the
Capital Outlay subfund,

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted Capital Outlay in
this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles s they pertain to governmental entities state that General
Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the
resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district
taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to
fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or
remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment, These resources can be transferred from and
to Current Expense by board resolution and, excluding equipment, with County Superintendent approval.

Special Revenue Fund — The Special Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State
and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local
appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund — The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The
financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specially authorized by the voters
25 a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or ata special election,

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and
improvement programs.

Permanent Fund ~ A permanent fund is used to account for assets held under the terms of a formal trust
agreement, whereby the District is under obligation to maintain the trust principal,
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable in form or are
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact,

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws or other governments, etc.) or by
constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes, Committed fund balance is
reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of Education, the District’s highest level of decision
making authority. Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved by the
Board of Education,

Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but do not meet the
definition of restricted or committed fimd balance. Under the District’s policy, amounts may be assigned by
the Business Administrator,

Unassigned — includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted, committed or assigned
to a specific purpose within the General Fund, The District reports all amounts that meet the unrestricted
General Fund Balance Policy described below as unassigned.

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. When an expenditure is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers
restricted funds to have been spent firstt When an expenditure is uncured for which committed, assigned, or
unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed
funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds as needed,

Proprigtary Fund Type

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, changes in net position,
financial position and cash flows, The generally accepted accounted principles applicable are those similar to
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the District:

Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the District is that the costs (ie.
expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the District has decided
that the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

D:  Basic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Proprietary Fund Type (Continued)

The District’s Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their
operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets, Depreciation has been
provided over the estimated usefuf lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as

follows:
Food Service Fund:
Equipment 12 Years
Light Trucks and Vehicle 4 Years
Heavy Trucks and Vehicle 6 Years

Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not
available to support District programs, The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net position and
are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds,

The District's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (Unemployment
Compensation, private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a
third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the govemment-wide
statements.

E. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the
measurement of focus applied.

1. Accrual:
Both governmental and business-type activities in the govermnment-wide financial statements and proprietary and

fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when incurred.
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
E. Basis of Accounting (Continued)

2. Modified Accrual:

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and
available. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures
are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The
exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is
recognized when due,

3. Revenues:

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are susceptible to accrual and under
New Jersey State Statutes a municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the
amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax
levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available.
Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or current operations, are reported as non
operating revenue. In respect to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and recipient
recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements are
met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider
and deferred revenue by the recipieat. Program revenues, including tuition revenue, are reported as reductions to
expenses in the Statement of Activities.

4. Expenditures:

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the period
when inventory items are used, rather than in the period of purchase,
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)}
F. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Account Name

Regular Programs — Instruction
Grades 1-5 — Salaries of Teachers
Grades 6-8 — Salaries of Teachers
Regular Programs — Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Textbooks
Resource Room/Resource Center:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Basic Skills/Remedial - Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers
Undistributed Expenditures — Instruction:
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State — Special
Undist. Expend. — Child Study Team
Purchased Professional - Education Services
Undist. Expend. - Instructional Staff Training Serv.
Purchased Professional — Educational Services
Undist. Expend. — Supp. Serv. - General Admin
Legal Services
Undist. Expend. - Allowable Maint. For School Facilities
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
General Supplies
Undist. Expend. ~- Student Transportation Serv.
Contracted Services (Special Education Students) - Vendors
Contracted Services (Special Ed. Students) - Joint Agreements
UNALLOCATED BENEFITS
Social Security Contributions
Other Retirement Contributions — PERS
Tuition Reimbursement

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and debt
service funds, The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and, as long as the District budget is
within State mandated CAPs, there is no public vote on the budget, If the budget exceeds State mandated CAPS,
the voters have an opportunity to approve or reject the budget at the regular election held in November.

Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, The legal level of budgetary control is
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest {most specific)
level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:23-2.2(f). All
budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution. Withdrawal from Impact Aid reserve in the
amount of $58,850.02 was made during the year ended June 30, 2018. The Board of Education approved the
following material budgetary appropriation transfers during the school year:

Amount

(4,310.41)

(30,598.14)

(6,563.86)
(4,655.68)

29,313.00
(8,096.50)

17,908.55
22,123.86
(10,630.59)
6,053.65
5,010.10

4,727.16
(9,288.99)

22,847.12
(19,780.00)

4,033.91
6,186.93
3,941.18
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

F. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the
year. For govemmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and
generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of legally mandated revenue recognition of the one or
more June state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental
fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The
grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not.
Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The special revenue fund had no encumbrances at June 30, 2018,

The reconciliation of the general and special revenue funds from the budgetary basis of accounting to the GAAP
basis of accounting is as follows,

Special
General Revenue

Fund Fund
Sources/inflows of resources

Actual emounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule § 3,394,900.38 $ 76,498.80
Difference - budget to GAAP:
The last two State aid payments are recognized as revenue for budgetary
purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this
revenue until the subsequent year when the State recognizes
the related expense in accordance with GASB 33. - -

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized. - -

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures

and changes in fund balances - governmental funds, £ 339490038 3 7649880

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule $  3,605441.96 $ 76,498.80
Differences - budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies end equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes, - -

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds 8360544194 §__76498.80
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
G. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

Deposits are cash and cash equivalents including petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued
interest. Other than Certificates of Deposit, deposits with maturities of greater than three months are considered
to be Investments, U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or
less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value,

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they
may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased
by New Jersey school districts,

2. Short - term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Short — term interfund receivables/payables represents amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or
services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year,

3. Inventories

Inventories, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund are recorded as
expenditure during the year of purchase.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at historical cost or
estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received.
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on the
following assets is provided on the straight — line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20-50 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-10 years
Land Improvements 10-20 years
Other Infrastructure 10-50 years

Land and Construction in Progress are not depreciated.
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
G. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

4. Capital Assets (Continued)

GASB No. 34 requires the District to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective with the
beginning of the current year, Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been
reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is subject to an extended
implementation period and is first effective for fiscal years ending in 2006,

5.Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and
sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, is
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits, Compensated absences that relate to future services,
or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund that will
pay for the compensated absences. The noncusrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in subsequent
fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the
fund and government - wide presentations. (See Note X11)

6. Uneamed Revenue
Uneamned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which has been received but not yet earned.
7. Long - term Obligations

Long — term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources have been
accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long — term
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported
as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in
subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item
between the fund and government — wide presentations.

8. Fund Equity

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a
specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans for future use of financial resources.

9. Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the District-wide financial statements.
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is reported
as restricted in the District-wide financial statements when there are limitations imposed on their use through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments,
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NoteI: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
G. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

10. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reports, amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates,

11. Allocation of Costs

In the government-wide statement of activities, the District has allocated unallocated benefits to various
programs based on the original budgetary expenditures by program.

H. Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Effective

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 87 “Leases”. This
statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning afier December 15, 2019, could have significant effects
on the entity’s financial reporting and the provisions of this statement could require significant modifications to
disclosure requirements.



Explanation of Differences between Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Pasition

"Total fund balances® of the District's govemmental funds in B-1 differs from "net position” of governmental activities
reported in the statement of net position in A-1. This difference primarily results from the long - ierm economic focus
of the statement of net position versus the cumrent financial resources focus of the governmenta! fund balance sheets,

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Position
Statement
Total Long - term of Net
Governmental Assets Reclassifications Pesition
Assels Eunds Liabilities (1) and Eliminations Totals
Cash and cash equivalents s 628,584.89 § - 1 - $ 628,584.89
Receivables, net 98,221.50 98,221.50
Receivables from Other Governments 90,279.90 (90,279.50) -
Cther Receivables 7.941.60 (7,941.60) -
Restricted assets:
Capital Reserve Account - cash 33531470 335,314.70
Maintenance Reserve - cash 164,663.58 164,661.58
Impact Aid Reserve - cash 378,779.17 378,779.17
Capital Asscts, net - 1,250,611,28 - 1,250.611.28
Total Assets 1,605,563.84 1.250,611.28 - 2,856,175.12
Deferred outflows related ta pensions 428,538.93 428,538,93
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources - 428,538.93 - 428.538.93
Total Assets and Deferred Quiflows of Resources H 1,605,563.84 $ 1,679,150.2]1 §$ - H 3,284,714.08
Liabilit
Accounts Payable 5 76,837.32 - 76,837.32
Interfunds Payable 4419.22 4,419.22
Uneamed Revenue 1247.11 724711
Other 249465 2,494.65
Noncurrent Liabilities - 1,009,869.00 95,115.23 1,104,984.23
Total Liabilitics 90,998.30 1,009,869.00 95,115.23 1,195,982.53
Deferred inflows related to pensions 282,521.00 282,521.00
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - 282,521.00 - 282,521.00
Total Liabilities and Deferred Intflows of Resources 90,998.30 1,292 390,00 95,115.23 1,478 503.53
Fund Bal /Mgt Positi
Net Pogiti
Net investment in capital assets 1,250,611.28 1,250,611.28
Restricted for:
Capita! projects 33531470 335314,70
Other purposes 562,527.84 562,527.84
Unrestricted 616,723.00 (863,851.07) (95.115.23) (342,243.20)
Total Fund Balances/Net Position 1,514,565.54 386,760.21 {95,115.23) 1,806 214,52
‘Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances/Net Position $ 1,605563.84 § 139662921 § - $ 3,284,714.05
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Explanation of Differences between Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Position (Continued)

1. When Capital Assets (land, buildings, equipment) that are to be used in govemnmenta! ectivities are purchased or
censtmicted, the cost of those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, the statement
af net position includes thoss capital assets among the assets of the District a3 a whole,

Cost of capital assets $ 2,328,392.06
Accumulated depreciation (1,077,780.78)
$ 1,250,611.28

Long - ferm libilitics applicable to the District's governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period
and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. A Habilities - both cusrent and tong - term are reported in the
statement of net position.

Net PERS Pension Liability $ 1,009,869.00
Defered cutflows related to pensions (428,538.53)
Deferved inflaws related to pensions 282,521.60
5 863,851.07
Compensated Absences 3 95.115.23
Adjustment to Debt Setvice Fund net position for the
accrual of interest expense, $ -
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Explansticn of Differences between Governmestal Funds Operating Stusment of Activitles

Thc'nammhm:uhmm'rumvmmdnuhhn-zdlﬂ'mmm‘dmgshnﬂpukh'fw:mnmml
activities reporied bn the statement of actlvities in A-2, The difference arise primuarily for the long - term economic focs
of the ataierent of activitles vertus the current flnancls resources focus of the governmental fands, The effect of e

differences Is ustrated below,

Local Tax Levy
Inczrest Exmned oo Tovestments
Miscellaneoyy
Stats Sources
Federal Sources
Total

Suppont Services and undistrituted costs:
Tultlon
Student and instrcrion related services
School sdmintstrative tervices
General and business saministrative services
Flant operatiozs and malmensnce
Pupll transpertation
Unaflocated Benefita
Teansfet to charter schook
Capital Outlay
Tol

Net Changn for the Year

2. Tn the statement of actlvities, nicrest on loog -term deds In the statement of activites i

funds, terent iy reported when doe, The accrised interest iy an addition b the reconcitintiens. (+)

3, Capital outlays are repested ln governmental funds as expendtinures, However, in the statement of activities, (he cost of those assets i
allocaied over thelr estimated uselul lives & depreciation expense. muunummwmmwmumwmmum

3. Adfustrment to Capieal Assets In sccordance with physical appraisa and dispositiocs

3. hu:mmdmhmwyunmmmwmﬂnpmmhmpumd.wmhlhnmmummw
from a.sale increase francial resources, Thus, the change in net nssets will differ from the changs in fung balaoee by the cost of the

sset removed, (-}

4, hlhlhmmdﬂlﬂhmﬂnopﬁlﬂngumc.g.mmmlhm(vuﬂnm)mmnmdbymemwmm
durhnhemr.hlhlummumhwm.upend!mmfumlmmmmpmhtMmd&mﬂdmw
(paid). mmmmmmummmmmhmmmmwm;wmumm

exceeds the eamed amount the differences is an addition to the reconcilistion (+),

Ommﬂmmmdmmmhhmuumm.mmmmmduﬂviulmvm.lh:mudpeﬂhabemm

camed net of employes contributiony ls reported as penalon expene.

Cast of beneflts eamed ot of employee contributions
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net aasets and b not reported bn Lhe statement of activities,

Debt principal
Caphl lease principal

4. Proceeds from debt lisues are a financing source in the governmental funds, They are ot reverue in the sratement of actlvities, lasulng

debi incresses loog - term Yabilities ko the staternent of net agets,

Proceeds of loog - term debt
Capital lease proceeds

3. Allocate Beneflis expenditures and eliminste PERS contribution ($41,186.93)

5. GASB 68 and 75 adjustments: Replace OPEB on-behalf payments 2nd revenues with Peaslon and OFER Expenses and Revenues ($657,175,00)
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Stmement
Total Long - term Capital Long - e of
Qovernmental Revenue, Relued Debe Reclassificaions Activitiea
Buirds Expenscs (2} Tiems (1} Toansactions (4)  and Eliminations (53 Tols
H 1,080,656.00 $ -3 - 8 - 8 - 3 2,088,656.00
1392937 1352937
335578 335578
2341 657,175.00 1591,571.3
439,455.90 - - - - 429,435.90
347,399.28 - = 637,175.00 4,128,574.24
101349352 . 39,004.07 (44,796.89) 814,051.27 1,821,841.57
28322438 4,049.20 (3.843.66) 21993316 361,361.08
130,430.82 250,00 (10,414.00) 82,945.36 203,208.18
130,883.12 130,693,12
328,063.81 328740 (3.364.24) B3.m224 408,599.19
60,563.70 763.99 (3,443.96) 40,135.87 98,056.70
207,902.19 3.607.42 (8,772.59) 143,934.98 145,755.98
12696931 2,019.3% (5,15591) 600152 13,864 31
161,553.62 8,987.00 (1.D15.63) 14,480.38 183,006.27
903,555.69 {903,5%5.69) -
39,634.00 39,654.00
193,573.73 (193,270.73) - - 2,603.00
,681,940.85 {131,101 .08) {84323.78) &i3.988.07 4,082 004.0
] (210541.48) § R | 131,001.08 § ME2378 § 4,18693 § 7021
accrued, regardless of when due. In the governments)
3 o
Depreclation expense $ {62,169.89)
Capiial outlays (exclusive of eaplial leass principal paymenes and SDA Debt Service Austament) 193,270.73
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1

-
.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201

Note III: Detailed Disclogure Regarding Assets and Revenues
A. Deposits and Investments
Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in institutions located in New J ersey which are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), the Savings Association Insurance Fund, or by any
other agencies of the United States that insure deposits or the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of govenmental units, The
statute requires that no governmental unit shail deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds
are secured in accordance with the Goveramental Unit Deposit Protection Act. Public depositories include
Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which
are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to
five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental
Units. If & public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.

At June 30, 2018 the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s cash and cash equivalent’s amounted
to $1,705,843.08. Of this amount, $250,000.00 was covered by federal depository insurance (F.D.IC.) and
$1,455,843.08 was covered by a collateral pool maintained by the banks as required by GUDPA.

At June 30, 2018 the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District had no participation in the State of
New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, requires the disclosure of bank deposits
that are subject to custodial credit risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of a depository financial institution, the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District will not
be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that may be in the possession of
an outside party,

As of June 30, 2018, none of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s cash and cash
equivalents of $1,705,843,08 was exposed to custodial credit risk.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note III: Detailed Disclosure Reparding Assets and Revenues {Continued)
A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments

New Jersey statutes (N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37) permit the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District to
purchase the following types of securities:

8. When authorized by resolution adopted by a majority vote of all its members the board of education of
any school district may use moneys which may be in hand for the purchase of the following types of securities
which, if suitable for registry, may be registered in the name of the school district;

(1) Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United
States of America;

(2) Government money market mutual funds;

(3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an
act of Congress, which security has a maturity date ot greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other external factor;

(4) Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations of local unit or units
within which the school district is located;

(5) Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of
purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the Department of the Treasury for investment by school
district;

(6) Local government investment pools:

(7) Depoasits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 of
P.L. 1977, c.281 (C.52:18A-90.4) or

(8) Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if:

(a) the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of this
subsection a;

(b} the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;

(c) the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

(d) the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in section 1 of
P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C.17:9-41) and for which a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and
security of collatera! is executed.

The Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District had no investments as described in Note I:G.1 at June
30, 2018.

B. Interfund Receivables and Payables
As of June 30, 2018, interfund receivables and payables resulting from various interfund transactions were as

follows:
Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
Genera! Fund $ -0- 3 441922
Enterprise Fund 4,419.22 -0-
S 44102 $__44192

53



Capital asget activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was es follows:

Beginning . Ending
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land b 50,00000 $ - s » 3 50,000.00
Total Capital assets not being depreciated 50,000.00 - - 50,000.00
Buildings and Improvements 1,725,739.26 193,270.73 1,919,009.99
Machinery and Equipment 359,382.07 - - 359,382.07

Totals at historical cost 2,085,121.33 193,270.73 - 2,278,392.06
Less accumulated depreciation for;

Buildings and Improvements (629,478.01) (33,174.63) (662,652.64)

Machinery and Equipment (386,133.12) (28,995.02) - (415,128.14
Total accumulated depreciation (1,015,611.13) (62,169.65) (1) - (1,077,780.78)
Net capital assets being depreciated 1,069,510.20 131,101.08 - 1,200,611.28

Governmental activities capital assets, net § 111951020 $ 131,101.08 b - 3 1,250,611.28
(1) Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:
Instruction 5 39,094.07
Special Education 4,04920
Other Instruction (Athletic) 250.00
Student and Instruction Related Services 3,287.48
School Administrative Services 783.99
General and Business Administrative Services 3,697.42
Plant Operations and Maintenance 2,019.59
Pupil Transportation — 898790
$  62,169.65

54



The District has no operating leases.

B. Long- Term Lisbilti

Long - Term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balancg Accualy Pavmenty Balance One Year
Other liabilities:
Compensated absences [ 4 8589501 S 11,5022 §% (2,370.00) 3 9511523 § 1,905.00
Total other liabilities 85,895.01 11,590.22 (2,370.00) (I) 95,115.23 1,905.00
Governmental activities

long - term liabilities 4 85,895.01 § 11,5022 § {2,370.00) ) 9511523 § 1,905.00

{1) Paid by general fund
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BOARD OF EDUCATIO
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note IV:Detailed Disclosure Regarding Liabilities and Expenses/Expenditures (Continued)
B. Long - Term Lisbilities (Continued)
1. Bonds Pavable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through referendums. All
bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are
general obligation bonds.

There were no Serial Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2018.

2, Temporary Notes

There were no Temporary Notes outstanding as of June 30, 2018,

3. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued

There were no authorized but not issued bonds as of June 30,2018

4. Capital Leases Payable
There were no Capital Leases Payable as of June 30, 2018.

Note V: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Fund Equity
A, Reserved - Restricted Fund Balance

In accordance with N.J.A.C.6A:23A-14.2, the Board has reserved fund balance in the amount of $164,663.58 as
of June 30, 2018 for Maintenance Reserve, These are funds anticipated to be required for future years
maintenance.

B. Capital Reserve Account

A capital reserve account was established by the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District Board of
Education by inclusion of $1.00 on October 4, 2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years, The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its
activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general find budget certified for taxes or by transfer by
board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-jtem appropriation amounts, or
both. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been
obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections
authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the account cannot
at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note V: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Fund Equity (Continued)
B. Capital Reserve Accouni{Continued)

A summary of the account’s transactions is as follows:

2000-2001 Budget {described above) $ 1.00
2003-2004 Tax Levy 100,000.00
2003-2004 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 125,650.00
2003-2004 Interest Income 2,509.20
2003-2004 Transfer to Capital Projects (277,400.00)
2004-2005 Interest Income 15.20
2004-2005 Transfer to Capital Projects (107.17)
2005-2006 Fund Balance 135,338.00
2005-2006 Interest Income 2,051.32
2006-2007 Fund Balance 101,308.00
2006-2007 Interest Income 12,013.28
2007-2008 Interest Income 6,284.47
2008-2009 Interest Income 3,864.95
2009-2010 Interest Income 905.46
2009-2010 Withdrawal (108,525.00)
2010-2011 Fund Balance 125,000.00
2010-2011 Interest Income 731.39
2011-2012 Interest Income 737.50
2011-2012 Withdrawal (83.313.68)
2012-2013 Fund Balance 400,000.00
2012-2013 Interest Income 189.45
2012-2013 Withdrawal (8,615.75)
2013-2014 Fund Bealance 150,000.00
2013-2014 Interest Income 1,177.28
2014-2015 Interest Income 1,590.78
2014-2015 Withdrawal {10,000.00)
2015-2016 Interest Income 1,504.94
2015-2016 Budget Expenditures (43,904.79)
2016-2017 Interest Income 1,664.30
2016-2017 Budget Expenditures (146,061.03)
2016-2017 Interest Income 3,607.83
2016-2017 Budget Expenditures (212,902.23)
Balance June 30, 2018 $.335314.70

The June 30, 2018 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30, 2018 is
$306,042.00. The withdrawals from the capital reserve were for use in a DOE approved facilities project,
consistent with the district’s Long Range Facilities Plan.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOQLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 30,2018

Note V: Detailed Disclogure Regarding Fund Equity {Continued)
C. Federal Impact Aid Reserve

As permitted by P.L.2015, ¢.46 whick amended N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-41 a federal impact reserve account was
established by the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District Board of Education by transfer of
$300,000.00 on June 30, 2016 by board resolution for the amount of federal impact aid funds — general fund -
received during the cumrent fiscal year for use as general fund expenditures in subsequent fiscal years, The
federal impact aid ~ general reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the
general find annual budget.

A summary of the account’s transactions ig as follows:

2015-2016 Resolution £ 300,000.00
2016-2017 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 105,028.19
2016-2017 Budget Expenditures (96,006.83)
2017-2018 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 125,000.00
2017-2018 Interest Income 3,607.83
2017-2018 Withdrawal (58,850.02)
Balance June 30, 2018 $378.779.17

Note VI:Pension Plans

Description of Systems

Substantially all of the Board’s employees participate in one of the following contributory defined benefit public
employee retirement systems which have been established by State statute: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(TPAF) or the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program
(DCRP). These systems are sponsored and administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits, The
Teachers’ Pension and Anmuity Fund retirement system is considered a cost sharing plan with special funding
situations as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the
Board and the system’s other related non-contributing employers. The PERS is considered a cost sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit plan. The DCRP is considered a cost sharing multiple-employer defined contribution plan.

The Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) was established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A.
43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time employees of the State
or any county, municipality, school district or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-
administered retirement system.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death and disability

benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest afier 25 years of service
or under the disability provisions of PERS.
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Note VI:Pension Plans(Continued)

Description of Svstems({Continued)
The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition
1 Members who were earolled prior to July 1, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or afier June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55% of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 1 and 2
mernbers upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60™ of
final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier §
members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age
60, tier 3 and 4 members before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of
service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires
prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier,
Tier 1 members can recejve an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service.
Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the
service retirement age for the respective tier.

The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) was established in 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18:66, to
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full-time public school employees in the
State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benefits
and 235 for post-retirement health care coverage.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.I.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death and disability
benefits. All benefits vest afier ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest afler 25 years of service
or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, afier
three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of
death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF:

Tier Definition

i Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008

3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
5

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Noie VI: Pension Plans (Continued)

Service retirement benefits of 1/55® of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 1 and 2
members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60® of
final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5
members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age
60, tier 3 and 4 members before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or
more years of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires
prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10
years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established as of July 1, 2008 under the provisions of
Chapter 92, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 (NJSA 43:15C-1 et seq..). The DCRP is a cost sharing multiple-
employer defined contribution pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with a
tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage., Vesting and
benefit provisions are established by NJSA 43:15C-] et seq..

According to the state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey
should any retirement systems terminate. The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions
and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required
supplementary information of each of the above systems, The financial reporis may be accessed via the New Jersey

Division of Pensions and Benefits website at www.gtate nj.us/treasury/pensions,

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 15A and requires contributions by active members and contributing
employers, State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the employer. The employer’s pension
contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and
an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the employer’s pension
contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount.

The contribution policy for TPAF is set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66 and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers, State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State. The State’s pension
contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the ntormal cost and
an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the State’s pension
contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount,
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Note VI:Pension Plans (Continued)
Contribution Requirements (Continued)

The District’s total payroil for the year ended June 30, 2018 was $1,710,230.48 and covered payroll was
$1,195,488.00 for TPAF, $290,062.00 for PERS and $69,194.00 for DCRP. Contributions to the TPAF, PERS and
the DCRP for the last three years made by the employees, Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District and the

State were as follows:
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Covered Covered Covered
TPAF Payroll PERS Payroll DCRP Payroll

Employees 6/30/16 $75,553.79 7.06%  $19,430.70 727 % $3,001.00 5.50%
6/30/17 78,466.56 7.39% 23,918.67 7.75 % 3,096.80 5.50 %

6/30/18 91,979.01 7.69 % 22,986.08 7.92% 3,805.60 5.50%

District 6/30/16 N/A N/A% $34,232.00 12.831 % $1,604.44 3.00%
6/30/17 N/A N/A% 31,133.00 10.09 % 1,689.21 3.00%

6/30/18 N/A N/A% 41,186.93 14.20% 2,075.81 3.00%

State of NJ  6/30/16 ¥ 63,065.00 589% N/A N/A % N/A N/A %
6/30/17 116,144.00 10.95 % N/A N/A % N/A N/A %

6/30/18 156,482.00 13.09 % N/A N/A % N/A N/A %

In accordance with N.J.S.A, 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $89,982.23 during the year
ended June 30, 2018 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on
their base salaries, This amount and the State of New Jersey's Contribution to the TPAF and PERS for OPEB have
been included in the basic financial statements and the budgetary comparison schedule — General Fund as a revenue
and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24.
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Note VII: Public Employees Retirement System
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the PERS and additions
to/deductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basig as they are reported by
PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value,

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $1,009,869.00 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actvarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the
District’s proportion was 0.0043382227%, which was an increase of 24.71% from its proportion measured as of June
30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $83,022.00. At June 30, 2018, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following

sources;
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and
actual experience b 23,7719 3
Changes of assumptions 203,454 202,708

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan

investments 8,877
Changes in proportion and differences

between District contributions and

proportionate share of

contributions 153,242 79,813
District contributions subsequent to

the measurement date 41,187
Total £430,539 $282,521

$41,186.93 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2018, the plan measurement date is June
30, 2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30

2018 $ 23,773
2019 35,874
2020 21,738
2021 (28,912)
2022 {21.073)
Total £31.401
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Note VII: Public Employees Retirement System (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date wag determined by an actuarial valuation
a3 of July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate 2.25%
Salary increases:
Through 2026 1.65% - 4.15% (based on age)
Thereafter 2.65% - 5.15% (based on age)
Investment rate of return: 7.00%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (setback

1 year for males and females) for service retirement and beneficieries of former members with adjustments for
mortality improvements from the base year of 2012 based on Projection Scale AA. The RP-2000 Disability Mortality
Tables (setback 3 years for males and setforward 1 year for females) are used to value disabled retirees.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014,

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at June 30, 2017)
is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division
of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following

table:

Long-Term

Expected

Target Real Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Retum
Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 5.51%
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
U.S Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private rea] estate 2,50% 11.83%
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.8. equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08%

63



BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSQLIDATED SCHOOL, DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201

Note VII:Public Emplovees Retirement System (Continued)

Note VII:

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30, 2017. This single blended
discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a
municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher, The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the
contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2040,
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments
through 2040, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the
total pension liability,

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate
of 5.00%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (4.00%) or I-percentage point higher (6.00%) than the current
rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
{4.00%) {3.00%) (6.00%)

District’s  proportionate
share of the net pension
liability $1,252,843 1,009,869 807,491

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Teachers Pension and
Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions to/deductions from the TPAF’s fiduciary net position have been determined on
the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a Liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected a
reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension
liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 3 -
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability

associated with the District 6,961,995
Total 56,961,995
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note VIII: Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) {Continued)

The et pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016 and the total pension liability to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of the net pension Hability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined, At June 30, 2017, the
District’s proportion was 0.00%, which was a decrease of 0.00% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the State (for the District) recognized pension expense of $482,292 and revenue of
$482,292 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2017, the State (for the District) reported deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to TPAF from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 5 45,383 $ 11,871
Changes of assumptions 1,376,372 1,202,153
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 417
Changes in proportion and differences between State
contributions associated with the District and
proportionate share of contributions 14,723 5,163
State’s contribution associated with the District
subsequent to the measurement date 156,482
Total SL624376  $1219.186

$156,482 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from State contributions associated
with the District subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending Jume 30, 2018, the plan
measurement date is June 30, 2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30

2018 3 76,446
2019 121,395
2020 101,503
2021 56,911
2022 64,524
Thereafter (177.021)
Total $243,754)
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Note VIII:Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund ( TPAF)(Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate 2.25%
Salary increases:
2012-2021 Varies based on experience
Thereafter Varies based on experience
Investment rate of return: 7.00%

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF members
reflecting mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-year average of Social Security data from
1953 to 2013,

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015,

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at June 30, 2017) is
determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined
using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class, These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class included in TPAF’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the

following table:

Long-Term

Expected

Target Real Rate

Asset Clasy Allocation of Retumn
Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 53.51%
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
U.S Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public high yield 2,50% 6.82%
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debit related real estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private real estate 2.50% 11.83%
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.S. equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08%
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Note VIII:Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAFY Continued)

Note IX:

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.25% as of June 30, 2017. This single blended
discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a
municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current member coatribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the
contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions,
Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected fisture
benefit payments of current plan members through 2036. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2036, and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability,

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate
of 4.25%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (3.25%) or 1-percentage point higher (5.25%) than the current
rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(3.25%) {4.25%) (5.25%)
District’s  proportionate
share of the net pension
liability $8,271,059 6,961,995 5,883,582

Heaith Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits

P.L. 2011, ¢.78 effective October 2011, sets new employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer-
provided health benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage.
The rate of contribution is determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected level of coverage. The
increased employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period for those employed prior to this new
legislation's effective date with a minimum contribution required to be at least 1.5% of salary.

Health Benefits Program Fund (HBPF)- Local Education Retired (including Prescription Drug Program Fund)- The
State of New Jersey provides free coverage to members of the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund who retire from a
board of education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement. Under the provisions of
P.L. 1992, c.126, the State also provides free coverage to members of the Public Employees’ Retirement System and
Alternate Benefits Program who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service or on a
disability retirement if the member's employer does not provide this coverage,
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Note IX:Health Benefit and Post-Retivement Medical Benefits (Continued)

P.L. 1987, ¢.384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund and the Public Employees’
Retirement System, respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those employees who retire after
accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, c.103 amended the law to eliminate
the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the
pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired stated employees and retired
educational employees. As of June 30, 2017, there were 112,966 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits
and the state contributed $1.39 billion on their behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by
the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding
basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994,

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 ¢.126 which provides free health benefits to
members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25
years of service. The State paid $238.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,913 eligible retired members in
fiscal year 2018,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

For purposes of measuring the liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, and expense
associated with the State’s requirement to contribute to the State Health Benefits Local Education Retired Employees
Plan (OPEB), information about OPEB’s fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from OPEB's fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by OPEB. For this purpose, OPEB
recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms, Investments are reported at fair
value, except for money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost,

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability that reflected a
reduction for State OPEB support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate
share of the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was
associated with the District were as follows:

District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 3 -
State’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

associated with the District 8.641.845
Total 58,641,845

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total OPEB linbility to calculate the net OPEB
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the District’s
proportion was 0,00%, which was a decrease of 0.00% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.
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Note IX:Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits {Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the State (for the District) recognized OPEB expense of $432,423 and revenue of
$432,423 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2017, the State (for the District) reported deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflows Inflows
of Oof
Resourcey Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 3
Changes of assumptions (1,022,036)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments
Changes in proportion (36,605)
State contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 101,058
Total 8101058  $(1.058,641)
Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate 2.5%
TPAF/ABP PERS
Salary increases:
Through 2026 1.55-4.55% 2.15-4,14%
based on years based on age
of service
Thereafter 2.00-545% 115-5.15%
based on years based on age
of service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee Male/Female
mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017
scale.  Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Annuitant
Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year using the MP-
2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality
table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale.

The actuarial assumptions used the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies
for the periods July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2015 and July 1, 2011 — June 30, 2014 for TPAF and PERS, respectively.
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Note IX:Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2017 and 2016 was 3.58% and 2.85%, respectively. This represents the municipal
bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher,

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the new OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate

of 3.58%, as well as what the District's proportional share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (2.58%) or 1-percentage point higher (4.58%) than the current

rate:
Current
Discount
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
{2.58%) (3.58%) (4.58%)
District’s proportionate
share of the net pension
liability $10,257,870 $8,641,845 $7,359,305
Health Care Trend

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.9% and decreases
to a 5.0% long-term trend rate afier nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%.
For health maintenance organization (HMO) medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.9% and decreases to a 5.0%
long-term trend rate after nine years, For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 10.5% decreasing to a
5.0% long-term trend rate afier eight years, For the Medicate Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The
Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future years,

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB linbility, as well as what the District's

proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are
1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase
District’s proportionate
share of the net OPEB
liability $7,107,053 $8,641,845 $10,680,024
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Note X: Deferred Compensation Plan

Note XTI:

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan™) created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency or upon death to their beneficiaries. The
plan administrators are as follows:

AXA Equitable
Equitable Life Assurance
Lincoln National Life Insurance

All amounts of compensation deferred under this plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and afl
income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other
beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District (without being
restricted to the provisions of benefits under the Plan) subject only to the claims of the Sandyston-Walpack
Consolidated School District’s general creditors. Participants’ right under the Plan are equivalent to those of general
creditors of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District in an amount equal to the fair market value of the
deferred account for each participant.

The maximum amount of deferred compensation for any participant for any taxable year shall not exceed the lesser of
$18,500.00 or 100 percent of the participant’s includible compensation for the taxable year except as provided by the
limited catch-up provision which may effect a participant's last three taxable years ending before a participant attains
normal retirement age as defined by plan.

During the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, the employees’ contributions to the plan were $49,458.00 and
$58,220.00, respectively.

Risk Management

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation [nsurance — The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment
Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”, Under this plan, the District is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its
account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State,

The following table is a summary of district contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the state for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the district’s trust fund for the current and previous two years:

District Employee Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2017-2018 $ -0- $ 5,104.28 $ 2,141,34 $41,487.00
2016-2017 -0- 4,954.13 2,874.06 38,472.52
2015-2016 128.23 4,955.01 2,154.97 36,341.01

The Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The District is 8 member of the North Jersey Preferred Pool 2C (the “Pool™). The Pool is an insured group of school

districts established for the purpose of providing certain low-cost workers’ compensation, automobile and various
liabilities insurance coverage for member school districts in order to keep local property taxes at a minimum.
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Note XI: Risk Management

The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including employee health and
accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years,

Note XII:Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g,, unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside
the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits,

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District’s personnel policies, In
the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. Sick leave benefits provide for
ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with the employee afier 10 years of service.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one year are
reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year,

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds as the
benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2018, no liability existed for compensated absences in the Food Service
Fund.

Note XTIV :Subsequent Events

The Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District has evaluated subsequent events through August 10, 2018, the
date which the financial statements were available to be issued and no additional items were noted for disclosure or
adjustment.
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REVENUES:

Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Intarest Eamad on Investments
Interast Eamed on Captial Resarve Funds
Intereat Earnad on Maintenance Resarve Funds
Interest Eamed on impact Ald Resarve Funds
Miscollanoous

Total - Local Sources

Sials Sources:
Equallzation Ald
Categorical Transportation Alkd
Categerical Spacial Education Ald
Categorical Sacurtty Ald
Per Pupll Growth Al
PARCC Readiness Al
Prelessional Leaming Community Ald
Hoat District Support Ald
Extraordinary Ald
Nonpublie Transportation Ald
TPAF Pension {On-Ssha¥f - Non-Budgated)
TFAF PRM {On-Behalf - Non-Budgeted)
TPAF Soclal Securtty (Reimbursad - Nen-Budgeted)
Tolal Slats Sources

Federal Sources:
Impact Aid

Total - Fedaral Sourcas
Tola! Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Currant Expanas:

Regular Programa - Insiruction
Preschooliindergarten - Salariea of Teachers
Gradss 1-5 - Salaras of Teachers
Grades 6-3 - Selaries of Teachers

Ragular Programa - Undistributsd Instruction
QOther Salares for Instniction
Purchasad Professional-Educational Sarvices
Purchased Tachnical Savices
Other Purchased Sarvices (400-500 serlen)
Genaral Suppllas
Taxtbooks
Othar Objecta
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION

SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION
Rescurca Room/Resource Canter:
Sealaries of Teacham
Other Salarles for Instruction
Ganeral Suppllss
Total Resource Room/Rascurca Center
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION

Baslc Skilla/Remedial + Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Genara! Supplles
Total Baslc Skills/Remedial - Instruction
School-8pon. Cocunicular Actvts. « Inst.
Salaries
Cther Cbjacts
Total Bchool-Bpon. Cocurricular Actvts. - Inst.
Other Instructional Programs - atruction
Salares of Teacher Tulom
Total Other Instructional Programs - Instruction
Summes School - Instruction
Salaries of Teachars
Other Salares of Instruction
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Total Summar Schaol - Instruction
Total Instruction

Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction:
Tultion to Other LEAs Within the Stale - Spacial
Total Undistributsd Expenditures - Instructlon:

Exhibit C-1

BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgatary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Flacal Yoar Ended June 30, 2018
Variznce
Original Budget Final Final to
Budast Imnsfere Budasl Actusl Actus]
$ 2,088,85600 $ - $ 2008,650.00 $ 208865500 $ -
3,000.00 - 3,000.00 4,509.79 1,500.79
1,000.00 - 1,000.00 3,607.83 2,807.83
1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,603.92 803.92
- 3,607.83 3,807.83
- - - 5,355.78 5,355.78
858.00 o 093,658.00 2,107.541.15 13,885.15
485,720.00 - 488,720.00 485,720.00 -
14,383.00 - 11,383.00 11,383.00 &
87,130.00 - 87,136.00 87,138.00 -
2,851,.00 - 2,661.00 2.851.00 =
1,480.00 - 1,460.00 1.490.00 -
1,480.00 - 1,480.00 1,460.00 -
1,500.00 - 1,500.00 1,500.00 -
1,740.00 - 1,740.00 1,740.00 -
- 13,359.00 13,359.00
- 422,00 422.00
159,482.00 156,482.00
101,058.00 101,058.00
- - = 80,582.23 89,662.23
573,090.00 - 572.004.00 934,402.23 381,303.23
- 352,857.00 352.857.00
- - - 352,857.00 352 957.00
2,668,755.00 - 688,755.00 3,384 900.38 728,145.33
110-100-101 § 78,250.00 § - 3 76,259.00 3§ 70,258.10 % 0.60
120-100-101 602,333.00 {#,310.41) £60,022.59 580,814,398 8,408.29
120-100-101 115,617.00 {30,508,14) 85,010.88 85,018.88 -
190-100-108 75.417.00 {8,563.84) 68,853.14 62,730.00 8,123,144
180-100-320 35,000.00 250,00 35,250.00 35,250.00 -
180-100-340 2,300.00 - 2,300.00 1,450.00 841,00
190-100-500 8,120.00 222394 8,343.04 7,640.82 695,32
190-100-210 112,2086.00 1,705.85 113,911.85 100,775.28 13,138.50
180-100-640 25,580.00 (4,655.80) 30,924.32 10,253.41 11,670.91
190-100-800 - 47589 475.80 475.89 -
1,060,032.00 [41.472.41) 1,019,359.50 978,483.52 __ 40,678.07
213-100-101 245,327.00 20,313.00 274,640.00 253,437.00 21,203.00
213-100-108 35,081.00 (6,086.50) 26,884.50 28,185.50 819,00
213-100-610 1,000.00 {391.00) £09.00 239.90 280.10
281,408.00 20,825.50 302,233.50 278,842.40 22,291.10
281, 408.00 20,825.50 302,233.50 279,942.40 22,201.10
230-100-10t 20,840,00 17,908.55 100,848,55 108,544,209 304.18
230-100-810 1,000.00 1,000. - - -
81,940.00 18,808.55 108,848 .55 108,544.39 304.18
401-100-100 1,000.00 861.00 1,081.00 1,961.00 -
401-100-800 3,200.00 327.18 3,527.18 3,527.18 -
4200.00 1,288.18 5468.18 5,408.18 -
421100178 11,000.00 288.00 11,306.00 11,374.00 24.00
11,000.00 288.00 11,386.00 11,374.00 24,00
422-100-101 4,800.00 (1,043.28) 3,758.72 2,180.00 1,608,72
422-100-108 480.00 584,25 1.074.25 1,074.25 c
422-100-300 2,400.00 - 2,400.00 1,800.00 600.00
7,660.00 448.03 7,230.07 5 024.25 2208.72
1,457,060.00 {2.501.21) 1,454 558.79 1,388 856.74 85,702.05
000-100-562 114,845.00 123.88 138,768.88 1%0,853.12 8,115.74

114,646.00 22,123.88 138,768.86 130,853.12 8,115.74
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Undistributed Expand. + Attand, & Soclal Work
Salorins
Total Undistributed Expend. - Attend, & Soclal Werk
Undist. Expend, - Health Sarvices
Salerlay
Purchased Professional and Tachnical Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Total Undlstributed Expenidituros - Health Ssrvices
Undist. Expond. - Speech,OT,PT & Ralated Servicas
Purchasaed Professional - Educational Sarvices
Supplies and Materials
Total Undist. Expend. - Speech,OT,PT & Relatsd Services
Undiat, Expend. - Child Study Tsam
Salories of Secrstarial end Clarical Aasistants
Purchased Profestional - Educational Services
Other Purchased Prof. and Tach, Services
Supplies and Matedals
Other Objects
Total Undlst. Expand, - Chlld Study Team
Undist. Expend. - Improvement of inst. Serv.
Purchased Prof- Educational Servicas
Total Undlst. Expend. - tmprovement of Inst. Serv.
Undist. Expand, - Edu. Metls Serv./Sch. Library
Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technical Servicos
Supplles and Malsrials
Total Undist. Expend, - Edu, Media Serv./Sch. Library
Undlat. Expend. « Instructional Staft Tralning Serv.
Purchased Professional - Educalional Servica
Cther Purchased Servicos (400-500 series)
Total Undisi, Expend. - Instructional Staff Tralning Serv,
Undist. Exprend. - Supp. Serv. - General Admin.
Salarles
Legal Services
Audit Foes
Qther Purchassd Prolsssional Services
Purchased Technica) Servicas
Communications/Telaphone
B0E Other Purchasad Services
Cther Purchased Services (400-500 series}
General Suppliea
Miscellanecus Expsndituras
BOE Membarship Duss and Fees
Total Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. - General Admin,
Undist. Expend. - Support Serv, - School Admin,
Salerias of Principala/Assistant Principals
Salaries of Other Profassional Staff
Tatal Undist, Expend. - Support Serv, - School Admin,
Undist, Expend., - Central Servicea
Salaries
Purchased Professional Servicas
Purchased Tachnical Servicas
Total Undlst. Expend. - Central Services
Undist. Expand. - Allowable Maint, For School Faclliles
Salaries
Cleaning, Repalr and Maintenance Services
Goneral Supplies
Othar Qbjects

Total Undist. Expand. - Allowabla Maint. For School Faclilties

BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOUIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Scheduls

Genoral Fund

Fiscal Year Endad June 30, 2018

000-211-100

000-213-100
000-213-300
000-213-500
000-213-800
000-213-800

000-218-320
000-216-600

000-218-105
000-218-320
000-218-280
000-219-600
000-219-800

000-221-320

000-222.100
000-222-300
000-222-600

000-223-220
000-223-600

000-230-100
000-230-331
000-230-332
000-230-338
000-230-340
D00-230-530
006-230-685
000-230-500
000-230-810
000-230-850
000-230-685

000-240-103
000-240-104

000-251-100
000-251-330
000-251-340

000-261-100
000-261-420
000-281-610
000-261-800

Exhiblt C-1

Varianca
Original Bucdgst Final Final to
Hudast Imansfera Hudgst Actuat Actunl
] 353000 $ 063 § 3,530.03 353003 § -
3,530.00 0403 3530.03 3,530.03 -
57,264.00 1,500.00 58,764,00 58,764.00 -
1,400.00 {25.00) 1,375.00 1,200.00 175.00
160.00 {160.00} -
4,600.00 {173.75) 4,620.25 4,604.30 21,95
- 126.34 120.34 128.34 -
63,624.00 1,267.59 84,091.59 B4.694.64 196.85
110,802.00 {1,265.23) 109.538.77 83,255.50 16,281.27
250.00 {2.38) 247.64 239.00 8.84
111,052.00 (1,267.58) 109,784.41 93,494.50 16,268.91
22,144.00 - 22,144.00 22,143.98 0.04
74,532.00 {10,630.59) 83.801.41 44,774.59 19,128.62
3,550.00 (19.88) 3,530.02 1,948.00 1,501.02
3,202.93 3,202.93 3,202.93 -
- 150.00 150.00 150.00 -
100,228.00 {7,297.84) 92.928.38 72,.220.48 20,707.88
8,000.00 - 8,000.00 6,138.13 1,880,687
8,000.00 - 8,000.00 6.129.13 1,860.87
12,639.00 - 12,639.00 12,589.84 el R
B,355.00 - 8,355.00 8,504.75 1,850.25
20,050.00 {275.24) 19,774.78 3,278.20 16,498.58
41,044.00 {275.24) 40,788 78 22 382 59 18.365.17
22,500.00 6,051.85 28,553,685 2524087 3312.e8
1,800.00 275.24 2175.24 2,154.82 20.42
24,400.00 5,328.89 30,728.89 27,385.48 323340
90,167.00 - 80,187,00 90,196.88 0.12
5,000.00 5,010.10 10,010.10 10,010.10 -
10,250.00 - 10,250.00 10,250.00 -
2,000.00 {1,620.55) are.45 379.45
1,700.00 - 1,700.00 1,051 83 648.01
1,100.00 - 1,100.00 968.10 133.90
5,000.00 - 5,000.00 4,850.37 43.83
2,820.00 54800 3,488.00 3,467,00 1.00
3,086.00 {914.25) 2471475 1,508.44 666,31
650,00 . 650.00 423,85 228.05
5,623.00 374.20 5997.20 5,8597.20 -
127,420.00 3,487.50 130,9208.50 128.822.03 2,104.47
57,500.00 - 57,500.00 57,490.90 0.04
3,065.00 0.74 3,085.74 2,085.74 -
£0,565.00 0.74 £0,565.74 60,565.70 0.04
73.029.00 - 73,032.00 73,038.98 0.04
3.600.00 [0.74) 3,509.26 3,590.00 9.26
2,625.00 - 2,625.00 2451.20 173.80
79,264.00 {0.74) 79,263.28 79,080.18 183.10
28,050.00 - 26,050.00 28,050.00 -
20,375.00 4,727.18 25,102.18 25,102.18 -
16,200.00 (9,288.99) 701104 5,544,42 1.468.59
500.00 1,478.00 1,978.00 1,979.00 -
65,225.00 {3,082 83} 52,142.17 60,675.50 1,468.59
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Exhibit C-1

BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schadule
Ganeral Fund
Fiscsl Year Ended June 30, 2018
Varlance
Original Budpet Final Final to
Budget Imneleny Budoet Actus} Actul
Undist. Expend. - Oth. Oper. & Maint. of Piant
Salarles 000-262-100 % 60,250.00 $ 311423 6336423 § 02,45248 § B70.87
Purchasad Professional and Tachnical Services 000-262-300 11,090.00 = 11,980.00 11,807.20 18274
Cloaning, Repalr and Malntenance Sarvices 000-202-420 4,669.00 819.58 5,518.50 521878 20878
Insurance 000-262-520 19,389.00 372.00 18,771.00 19,771.00 -
General Bupples 000-282-810 17,800.00 {801.20} 17,198.80 16,367.682 1,831.18
Energy (Elsciricity) 000-262-822 22,000.00 (31.50) 21,088.50 20,417.69 1,550.81
Enargy (O8) 000-262-824 25,000.00 {754.18) 24,245.84 24,202.00 4375
Other Otjects 000-262-800 251,00 183.80 414.80 41480 -
Tols! Undiet Expend. - Othar Oper, & Maint. Of Pisnt 161,380.00 3,082.83 164.471.83 150,693.73 4,778.10
Undist. Expand. - Cars and Upkesp of Grounds
Cleaning, Rapalr and Maintenance Sarvices 000-203-420 10,230.00 . 10,230.00 8,600.00 3,630.00
Ganeral Suppliss 000-253-810 540.00 - 540.00 - 540.00
Total Undist. Expend. - Cara and Upkeep of Grounds 10,770.00 - 10,770.00 §,600.00 4,170.00
Undist. Expand. - Student Transporiation Serv.
Salaries of Non-Insiructional Aldes 000-270-107 6,874.00 (180,00} 8,714.00 5,152.50 1,681.50
Salarias for Pupil Trans. (Batwssn Homa & School) - Regular 000-270-180 12,603.00 - 12,683.00 12,683.00 -
Salasies for Pupll Trans. {Batwean Home & School) - Speciat 000-270-181 1,440.00 - 1,440.00 1,440.00 -
Selaries for Pupll Trens. (Cther than Bstwean Homa & Schoal) 000-270-162 3,000.00 160.00 3,160.00 2,520.00 840.00
Cther Purchased Profeasional and Tachnical Services 000-270-360 4,800,00 110.02 4,010.02 4,138.52 T80.50
Cleaning, Fispalr and Maintenance Servicas 000-270-420 10,000.00 {110.02} 9,650.90 9,507.35 373.63
Contmcted Services - Ald in Lisy of Paymanta - Non-Public Schools  000-270-503 684.00 2,118.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 -
Contracted Sarvices - Akt In Usu of Payments - Charter Schools 000-270-504 1,768.00 - 1,768.00 1,780.00
Contracted Services (Batwesn Homs and Scheod) - Vandors 00C-270-511 73,150.00 a.48 73,150.48 73,150.48 -
Conlracted Sarvices (Batween Homa and Schoal) - Joint Agresments 000-270-513 2,552.40 2,552.48 2,552.48 -
Contracted Sarvices (Spacial Education Students) - Vendora 000-270-614 22,169.00 22,847.12 45,018.12 42,803.58 212258
Cantracied Services (Spaclal Education Students) - Joint Agreemants000-270-515 18,780.00 (10,780.00) -
Transponation Suppliea 000-270-818 6,870.00 (0.48) 8.869.54 442427 2,245.27
Glher Otjects 000-270-800 100.00 - 100.00 81.50 18.50
Totsl Undist, Expend. - Sudent Transportation Serv, 183,328.00 7.735.68 171,003.58 161,553.62 9,500.08
ALLOCATED BENEFITS
Health Benelits:
Regular Programs - Instruction 100-100-270 284,813.00 - 284,913.00 274,809.51 10,303.49
Spacial Programa 2x-100-270 94,645.00 - 94,845.00 84,553.00 202,00
Attendance 000-211-270 1,321.00 - 1,321.00 - 1.321,00
Health Servicas 000-243-270 10,324.00 - 10,324.00 10,224.00 -
Child Study team 000-210-270 8,351.00 . 8,351.00 8,351.00 -
Genaral Adminiatration 000-230-270 28,883.00 - 26,863.00 20,810.43 43.57
Contml Services 000-251-270 6,888.00 - 8,688.00 8,888.00 -
Student Transportation Sarvices 000-270-270 1,023.00 - 1,023.00 1,023.00 -
TOTAL ALLOCATED BENEFITS 438 528.00 - 438,520.00 424 S67.94 11,880.08
UMALLOCATED BENEFITS
Soclal Sacurty Contrbutlons 000-201-220 40,000.00 4,033.81 44,033.9t 42,558.82 1.475.28
Other Retiement Contributions - PERS 000-291-241 35,000.00 6,188.93 41,188.83 41,186.83 -
Other Ratiremant Contributions « DCRP 000-291-240 2,078,856 2,078.85 2,078.20 0.38
Unemployment Compansation 000-291-250 2,150.00 (2.064.50) 85,50 88.50 -
Warlanen's Compansation 000-291-2680 33,613.00 {1,045.82) 32,867.08 32,248.00 618.08
Haalth Baneita 000-261-270 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 =
Tultion Relmbursemant 000-261-260 §,000.00 3,841.18 8,841.18 B,941.18 -
Other Employes Banalita {00-201-260 000.00 370.00 2,370.00 2,370.00 -
TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 116,083.00 15,408.25 133,561.25 131,466.52 2,094.73
TPAF Pansion (On-Baheff - Non-Budgeted) 156,482.00
TPAF PAM (On-Bshalf - Non-Budgeted) 101,058.00
TPAF Soclal Security (Reimbursad - Non-Budgetad) 86,682.23 (89,982 23}
TOTAL ON-BEHALF CONTRIBUTIONB = = o 4752223 (347,522.23)
TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 554,501.00 15,460.25 __570,089.25 $03,550.60 [333,467.44)
TOTAL UNGISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 1,869,082.00 47,611.23 1,736,693.23 1,981,057.40 {244 364.29)
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 3,148,142.00 45,110.02 3,181,252.02 3,369,914.23 (178,682.21)
CAPITAL QUTLAY
Facliilen Acquisition end Construction Sarvices
Salariea 000-400-100 - -
ArchitacturaVEnglneering Sarvices 000-400-334 B -
Othar Purchasad Professional and Technical Sarvices D00-400-390 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 5,685.00 4,215.00
Conatruction Services 000-400-450 205,084.00 . 205,084.00 168,017.58 30,048.41
Goneral Supplies 000-400-810 21,500.00 - 21,800.00 21,568.14 331.88
Asgesament for Dabt Sarvica on SDA Funding 000-400-808 £03.00 - £03.00 2803.00 -
Tatal Facllites Acquisition and Construction Sarvices 239,567.00 - 239,567.00 195,873.73 43,892.27
TOTAL CAPITAL QUTLAY 239,567.00 . 239,567.00 105,873.73 43,663.27
Transter of Funda to Charter Schoola 000-100-56% 2581400 13,740.00 39,654.00 29,654.00 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,411,623.00 58,850.02 3,470,473.02 3,605 441.98 {134.868.84)
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Exhibit C-1
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL BISTRICT
Budgstary Compasison Schedule
General Fund
Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Excess (Daficiancy) of Revenuss
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Usea):
Oparating Transfer Out:
Transler to Food Sarvics Fund
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deflciency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Qver (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (Usaa)

Fund Bslancs, July 1
Fund Balsnce, June 30

Recaplulstfon of Excess (Deficlency) of Revenuas and
Other Financing Sources (Uses) Over {Under) Expendltures
and Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Increass in Caphial Rasaive
Withdrawal from Cepital Reserve
Incraase n Maintsnance Raserve
Withdrawal from Maintsnance Ressrve
Incraase In fmpact Ald Rasarve Reserve
Wiihdrawal from Impact Ald Fessrve Resarve
Budgeted Fund Balance

Total

Ansiysls of Fund Balsnce June 30, 2018;

Reatricted Fund Balance:

Capital Reswrve Account

Maintsnance Raserva

Impact Ald Raserve
Asaigned Fund Belance:

Year-and Encumbwences

Deasignated lor Subsaquent Year'a Expandituns
Uneasignad Fund Ba‘ance

Reconciliation of Budgetary Fund Balance to GAAP Fund Balance:
Fund Balance Juns 30, 2018
Last Two Current Year State Ald Paymanis Not Fiaalized on GAAP Basis

Varjance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Iransfery Budqet Actusl Agtusl

$__ (744889.00) 3 (58,850.02) {803,710.02) §___ (210,541.50) § 593,170.44

{8,180.00) 5 {8,186.00) 8,183.00

{8,188.00) . {8,188.00) 5 8,188.00
(753,058.00) {58,850.02) (811,906.02) (210,541.58)  601,384.44
+,782162.12 5 1,762,153.12 1,782.153.12 5

$ 102000712 § (58.850.02) § 970247140 $ 1,671611.54 § 801,384.44

3 1,00000 § -8 1,00000 § 380783 $§  2,607.83
{230,547.00) - {239,567.00) (21290223  20,68477
1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,802.92 80262
(3,500.00) 5 {3,500.00) {3,500.00) .
s 128607.80  126,607.80

{58,850.02) (58,850.02) (58,850,02) .

511,089.00 5 511,989.00) {69,308.01) __ 442,880,

$ __ (753,058.00) § {59,850.02) (611,600.02) §__ (210541.59) § 801,364.44

$ 335,314.70
164,683.58
378, 77917

19,085.09
36508400 |
308,705.00 .

$ 157161154
FIuEy

$  1,571.611.54
{57,048.00}

$ 1,514 565.54
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Exhibit C-2
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Speclal Revenue Fund
For the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Original Budget Final Variance
Budaet Transfers Budgst Aclual Einal {p Actua]
REVENUES:

Federal Sources $ _62233.00 $ 2008100 § 8231400 $ 7549880 % 5,815.20
Total Revenues $ 62233.00 $ 20,081.00 $ 8231400 § 76408.80 § §815.20
EXPENDITURES:

Instruction

Personal Services - Salaries $ 1800000 § 6,953.00 § 2495300 $§ 2495300 § -
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 1,007.00 1.097.00 1,097.00 -
General Supplias - 12.,458.00 12,459.00 12,241.95 217.05

Total Instruction 18,000.00 20,509.00 38,509.00 38,291.95 217.05

Support Services

Purchased Professional - Educalional Services 44,233.00 {428.00) 43,805.00 38,206.85 5,598.15

Total Support Services 44,233.00 (428.00) 43,805.00 38,206.85 5,598.15
Total Expanditures 62,233.00 20,081.00 82,314.00 76,498.80 5815.20
Total Qutflows $ 6223300 $ 2008100 $§ 8231400 § 76,498.80 $ 5815.20
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION -
PART II
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Required Supplemantary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Note to RSI
Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

r
Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Qutflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Exhibit
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "ravenue”
from the budgetary comparison schadule
Differance - budget to GAAP:

The last State ald paymant Is recognized as revenus for budgetary
purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this
revenue untll the subsaquent year when the State recognlzes
the related expense In accordance with GASB 33.

[C-1&C-2]

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are racognlzed as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized.

Total revenues as reported on the statemant of revenues, expsnditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds, [B-2)
Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basls) "total outfiows" from the
budgetary comparlson schedule
Differences - budget to GAAP
Encumbrarnices for supplies and equipment ordarad but
not recelved are raported in the year tha order Is placed for
budgetary purposes, but In the year the supplles are receivad
for financial reporting purposes.
Transters to and from other funds are prasented as outflows of

[C-1&C-2]

budgetary resources but are not expenditures $ -
for financlal reporting purposes. -

Net transfers (outflows) to general fund

Total expendiiures as reported on the statement of ravenues,
expanditures, and changss In fund balances - govammental funds

[B-2}
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Exhibit ¢-3

Speclal
Genaral Revenua
Fung Eund
$ 3,394,900.38 $ 76,498.80
$ 3,394,800.38 $ 76,498.80
$ 3,605,441.96 $ 76498.80
$ 3,605,441.98 $__76498.80



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
PART III
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Section L,

SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS
(GASB 68)
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Exhibit L1

BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Scheduls of tha District's Proportionate Shars of the Net Penslon Liability. PERS

Fiscal Year Ending Juns 30, —
2018 1 2018 2018 2014

0.0034784440% 0.0038817068% 0.0040790379% 0.0041734376%

District's proportion of the net pension Rability 0.0043382227%
District’s proportionats share of the net pansion Nabiity § 100088800 $ 103021500 § B83613.00 § 783,707.00 § 707,827.00
District's covared employes payroll 3 20008200 § 30865600 § 26721700  § 25203700 § 274,400.00
Diatricta proportionate share of the net pansion flablity as a

40.16% 332.79% 334.40% 302:20% 200687%

parcentage of its covared employes payrol

Flan fiduciary net position as & percantage of the total pansion
48.10% 40.14% 47.02% 52.08% 48.72%

Nota: This schedule doss not contaln ten years of information a3 GASB No. 68 was implemantad during flscal
ysar anded June 30, 2015,
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ExhibitL-2
BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of District Contributions- FERS

Flscal Year Ending June 30,

_2018 2017 2018 2018 2012
Contractually required contribution 3 4118683 5 23113300 $ 23423200 $ 33,827.00 $ 31.448.00
Contributions In relation to the contractually required contribution {41,186.83) (31,133.00) (34,232.00} (33,627.00) {31,448.00)
Contribution deficlancy/{excess) 3 - H - 3 - 3 - $ -
District's coverad employse payrol $ 29008200 % 30065500 S 26721700 $ 252,637.00 $ 274,406.00
Contributions as a percentags of covered smployse payrol 14.20% 10.08% 12.81% 13.31% 11.48%

Note: This scheduls does not cantain ten years of information as GASE No. 68 was implemented during flacal

year ended June 30, 2015,
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Exhibit L-3
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of the District's Proportionats Share of the Net Penslion Lisbllity- TPAF

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

2018 2017 2018 2018 2014

District's propostion of the nat pension llabllily 0.0103257531% [1)] 0.0116849520%  0.0108804150% 0.0119134190%
Dlstrict's proporionata share of tha net pension Nabillty $ 6,081,985.00 1)) § 7312,14800 § 582003791 $ 8,020,948.72
District's covered amployes payroll 3 146548800 § 108108400 § 1,070,167.00 § 1,05641800 § 1,164,538.00
District's proportionata share of tha net pension liability as &

perceniage of lis covered amployes payroll 582.30% 0.00% 608.93% 550,92% 517.02%
Plan Aduclary nat position as a parceniage of the lotal psnslon

liabhity 25.41% 22.33% 28.71% 33.64% 33.70%

(1) Information not avallebls

Nots: This scheduls doas nat contaln ten yeam of information as GASB No. 88 waa Implsmented during flscal
year ended June 30, 2015.
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BOARD QF EDUCATIO
DYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DIST|

O REQUIRED § LEME Y INFORMATIO
Y ENDED JUNE 3 18

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM
A, Benefit Changes

There were none.

B. Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 3.98% as of June 30, 2016 to 5.00% as of June 30, 2017 In accordance with
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67,

TEACHERS' PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND
A. Benefit Changes

There were none.,

B. Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 3.22% as of June 30, 2016 to 4.25% as of June 30, 2017 in accordance with
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67.
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Tatal OPEB [lability

Sarvice cost

Interest

Changes of banefit terms

Differances betwean expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Mamber conlributions

Gross benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB Ifability

Total OPEB Hability - beginning

Total OPES liabllity - ending

Coverad - employee payroll

Total OPEB llability as a percentage of
covered - employas payroll

Note: This schedule doas not contain ten years of information as GASB No,

year ended June 30, 2018.

BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Flacal Year Ending June 30,

Exhibit M-1

2018

2017 2018 2015

2014

$

282,580.00

272,168.00

{1,083,868.00)
7,371.00

(200,183.00)

{721,884.00)

9,363,528.00

$__5641.845.00

3

1,485,550.00

581.73%

$§ 938362000 $ 5 $ :

$ 1,369,71900 § C $ -

683.61%

75 was Implemented during fiscal
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

LOCAL EDUCATION

A. Benefit Changes

Thera were none,

B. Changes of Aasumptions

The discount rate changed from 2.85% as of June 30, 2016 to 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 In accordance with
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Section D
SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES
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Section E
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Speciat Revenue Fund

Exhibit E-1

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction:
Personal Services - Salaries
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
General Supplies

Total Instruction

Support Services:
Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

93

100-100
100-500
100-610

200-320

Federal

Total Aid
76,498.80 $ 76,498.80
76,498.80 $ 76,498.80
24.953.00 % 24,953.00
1,097.00 1,097.00
12,241.95 12,241.95
38,291.95 38,291,95
38,206.85 38,206.85
38,206.85 38,206.85
76,498.80 $ 76,498.80




REVENUES
Federal Sources

Total Federal Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction:
Personal Services - Salaries
QOther Purchased Services (400-500 serles)
Genaral Suppiies

Tatal Instruction

Support Services:
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Total Support Services

Total Expanditures

100-100
100-500
100-810

200-320

BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Spaeclal Revenua Fund

Combining Schedule of Federal Program Revanues and Expandltures - Budgatary Basis
For the Fiscal Yoar Ended Juna 30, 2018

Exhibit E-1b

E.8.E.A, LD.EA. PartB
Total Ile] Itell Titig IV Basic Ersachool REAF,
5 76849880 § 12,807.00 256700 $ 1000000 $ 2862480 $ 1,007.00 §  21,203.00
$_7549880 $ 12807.00 2567.00 $ 1000000 § 2062480 §$ 108700 $ _ 21,203.00
$ 2485300 § 23,750.00 - s e $ - 3 = § 2120300
1,097.00 1,087.00 -
12,241.85 2,057.00 8,000.00 2,184.95 - -
38,291.85 §,807.00 8,000.00 2,184.65 1,097.00 21,203.00
38,208.85 7,000.00 2,867.00 2,000.00 28,638,585
38,208.85 7,000.00 2,587.00 2,000.00 28,538.85 - -
$ 7649880 $ 12,807.00 2,567.00 S 1000000 $ 2082480 $ 1,087.00 $ _ 21,203.00
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Section F
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
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Section G
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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ENTERPRISE FUND
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
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Section H
FIDUCIARY FUND
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Exhibit H-3
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Balance Cash Cash Balance
Schools June 30, 2017 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2018
Student Council $ 917.07 % 52751 % 78773 § 656.85
3 917.07 $ 52751 § 78773 § 656.85
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Exhibit H4
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Payroll Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Balance Cash Cash Balance
June 30, 2017 Receipts Disbursements  June 30,2018
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings $ 4508094 § BB84,545.85 § 87181418 § 57.812.81
Net Salaries and Wages - 905,786.29 995,786.29 -
Interfund Accounts Payable 12,721.13 5,104.28 2,141.34 15,684.07
$ 57,802.07 3 1,885,436.42 $ 1,869,741.81 § 73,496.68
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Section 1
LONG -TERM DEBT
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. Pursuant to State of New Jersey Department
of Education requirements issued for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, only two years statistical data
needed to be presented. Additional year’s data will be included each year thereafier until ten years of data
is presented,

103



Financial Trends
J-1
J-2
J-3
J-4
J-5

STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited)

Net Position by Component

Changes in Net Position

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds
General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source

Revenue Capacity

J-6
J-7
J-8
J-9

Debt Capacity
J-10
J-11
J-12
J-13

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Principal Property Taxpayers

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type

Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Qutstanding

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt as of June 30
Legal Debt Margin Information

Demographic and Economic Information

J-14
J-15

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers

Operating Information

J-16
J-17
J-18
J-19
J-20

Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program
Operating Statistics

School Building Information

Schedule of Required Maintenance for School Facilities
Insurance Schedule
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Exhibit J-20

BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Insurance Schedule
As of June 30, 2018
Unaudited
Student Accident Insurance
Coverage
Schoal Allianca Insurance Fund:
Package Pollcy:
Blanket Aesal and Personal Property 8 500,000,000 $
Ganeral Llability Including Automoblle and Employes Bensfits 5,000,000
Environmental Llabllity 1,000,000/2,500,0000
General Aggregata 100,000,000
Flre Damage 2,500,000
Medical Expensas 10,000
Boiler & Machinery 100,000,000
Crima Coverage: 50,000
Blanket Dishonasty Bond 500,000
Excess Liability 5,000,000
School Board Lagal Liabllity 5,000,000
Employer's Llability 5,000,000
Workers Compensation Policy Statutory
Supplemental Indemnity Statutory
Sealactive Insuranca
Suraty Bonds:
Board Secretary/Businass Administrator 25,000
Treasurer of School Moneys 150,000
Bollinger Insurance
Student Accident 100,000

Source; District's records.
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L M. Vrabel < Associates, £
Accountants and Auditors

Timothy M. Vrabel, RMA, @A
Chris C. Hiwang, 024

" Sheet |

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT QF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
el Ban L SNARN AU QI FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITQR’S REPORT

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District
County of Sussex, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of Scheol Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated
School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated August 10, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstance for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sandyston-Walpack
Consolidated School District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item #2018-1 that we
consider to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under

Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated
School District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School
District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Timothy M. Vrabel
Public School Accountant
License No. CS000498

Chris C. W. Hwang
Certified Public Accountant
License No. CC033704

Montville, New Jersey
August 10, 2018
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE; REPORT ON SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIRED BY TITLE 2 U.S. CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS (CER PART 200
UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS, COST PRINCIPLES AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR
FEDERAL AWARDS AND

NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR LETTER ]5-08
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District
_ County of Sussex, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated Schaol District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in U.S Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and
the New Jersey Compliance Manual State Grants Compljance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated Schaol District's
major state programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor’s Results Section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District's
major state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of complience in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; in compliance with the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey; Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Reauirements for Federal Awards; and New Jersey Office of
Management and Budget Circular Letter 15-08 Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid. Those standards, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's
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standards, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circular Letter 15-08 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination
of Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s compliance with those requirements,

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State program

In our opinion, the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District, in the County of Sussex, State of New Jersey,
complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. '

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above, In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with New Jersey OMB Circular 15-
08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School
District’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist
that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct non compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by the those
charged with governance, We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item #2018-1 to be significant deficiencies.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control of compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08,
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Required by Title 2 U.S.

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit

Requjrements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08

We have audited the financial statements of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated August 10, 2018, which contained an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey
OMB Circular 15-08 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements, The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Schedules of Expenditure of Federal Awards and State Financial Agsistance are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

bl

Timothy M. Vrabel
Public School Accountant
License No. CS000698

Chris C.W. Hwang
Certified Public Accountant
License No. CC033704

Montville, New Jersey
Aupust 10, 2018
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

General

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance present the activity of all
federal and state programs of the Sandyston-Walpack Consolidated School District Board of Education.
The Board of Education is defined in Note I:B. to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal
awards and state financial assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal
awards and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

Bagis of Accounting

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented using the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Notes I:E and
Note LF. to the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in the schedules is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore,
some amounts presented in the schedules may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation
of, the basic financial statements. Board has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance,

Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund
to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreernent to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, payments are not
recognized uatil the subsequent year due to the state deferral and recording of the state aid payments in the
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the one or
more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30,2018

{(CONCLUDED)
Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $-0- for the general fund
and $ -0- for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of accouating for the general and special revenue
funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on
8 GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $  352,957.00 3 93440223 $ 1,287,359.23
Special Revenue Fund 76,498.90 - 76,498.90

Total Awards and
Financial Assistance 3 42945590 $..934,402.23 § 136385813

Relationship to State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related state
financial reports.

Other

The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of
the district for post-retirement medical benefits and the normal and accrued liability pension costs for the
year ended June 30, 2018. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the
state for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June
30, 2018. The amount reported as PERS Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on behalf
of the district for post-retirement medical benefits for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statement Section

A) Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

B) Internal Control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
2) Were significant deficiencies identified
that were not considered to be material

weaknesses? X vyes none reported

C) Noncompliance material to basic
financial staternents noted? yes X _no

Federal Awards Section - Not Applicable
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSQLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued)

State Financial Assistance Section

F) Dollar threshold used to determine Type A
Programs

K) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

L) Type of auditor’s report on compliance for
major programs.

M) Intemnal Control over compliance:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Were significant deficiencies identified
that were not considered to be
material weaknesses?

N) Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with N.J. OMB
Circular 15-087

O) ldentification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s

18-495-034-5120-078

18-495-034-5120-089

18-495-034-5120-084

18-495-034-5120-097

18-495-034-5120-098

18-495-034-5120-101

18-495-034-5120-102
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$ _750,000.00

ves_ X no

Unmodified

—  Yes Xno

yes __ X none reporied

yes Xno

Name of State Pro
Equalization Aid

Special Education Aid
Security Aid

Per Pupil Growth Aid
PARCC Readiness Aid

Professional Learning
Community Aid
Host District Support Aid
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL. DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the

basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2018-1
Criteria or specific requirement:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control system to ensure compliance
with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants,

Condition:
Because of a limited number of available personnel, it is not always possible to adequately segregate certain
incompatible duties, so that one employee has access to both physical assets and the related accounting records,
or to all phases of a transaction. Consequently, the possibility exists that unintentional or intentional errors or

irregularities could exist and not be promptly detected. Certain functions, including payroll preparation, in the
Board Office are handled by one person.

Questioned Costs:
Not Applicable

Context:

While this situation is not unusual in operations the size of the School District, management should be aware of
this condition and realize that the concentration of duties and responsibilities in a limited number of individuals
is not desirable from a control point of view.

Effect;

Our audit did not reveal any significant errors or irregularities resulting from this lack of segregation of
employees’ duties and responsibilities,

Recommendation:

Not Applicable
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questjoned Costs

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by Title 2 U.S, Code of

Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles. and _Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08,
FEDERAL AWARDS — Not Applicable

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Finding 2018-1
Criteria or specific requirement:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an intenal control system to ensure compliance
with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants,

Because of a limited number of available personnel, it is not always possible to adequately segregate certain
incompatible duties, so that one employee has access to both physical assets and the related accounting records,
or to all phases of a transaction. Consequently, the possibility exists that unintentional or intentional errors or

irregularities could exist and not be promptly detected. Certain functions, including payroll preparation, in the
Board Office are handled by one person.

Questioned Costs:
Not Applicable

Context;
While this situation is not unusual in operations the size of the School District, management should be aware of
this condition and realize that the concentration of duties and responsibilities in a limited number of individuals
is not desirable from a control point of view.

Effect:

Our audit did not reveal any significant errors or irregularities resulting from this lack of segregation of
employees’ duties and responsibilities.

Recommendation:

Not Applicable
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BOARD OF EDUCATION
SANDYSTON-WALPACK CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, Title 2

U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Reguirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

FINDING #2017-1

Condition
Because of a limited number of available personnel, it is not always possible to adequately segregate certain
incompatible duties, so that one employee has access to both physical assets and the related accounting records,
or to all phases of a transaction. Consequently, the possibility exists that unintentional or intentional erTors or
irregularities could exist and not be promptly detected. Certain functions, including payroll preparation, in the
Board Office are handled by one person.

Current Status
Unchanged — See Finding #2018-1.
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